IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. **72,454** 

Florida Bar No: 184170

### STATEMENT OF THE FACTS AND THE CASE

This is another Fireman's Rule case, where Summary Judgment was granted on the basis of that Rule, as the Plaintiff is a fireman. However one clear exception to the Fireman's Rule is that there will be liability if the Defendant is on the premises and did not warn the fireman of a dangerous condition which is not open and obvious. In the present case the firemen where on the premises fighting the fire from 4:00 P.M. to 8:00 or 9:00 P.M. and officers, as well as maintenance people, employed by the Defendant were all on the premises. They did not warn Fireman Brantley of the dangerous condition which was not open and obvious to him; namely post holes for a fence which had been taken out, leaving the large holes still in the ground, with brush grown over them, such that Fireman Brantley stepped in one, was severely injured and can no longer work as a fireman.

The trial court entered a Summary Judgment for the Defendant/landowner holding that this suit was barred by the Fireman's Rule.

On appeal the Third District entered a per curiam affirmance, citing <u>Sanderson v. Freedom Savings and Loan</u>

<u>Association</u>, 496 So.2d 954, 956-957 (Fla. 1st DCA 1986) (A 1).

<u>Sanderson</u> is currently pending review on the merits in this Court, Case No. 69,687.

#### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The District Court of Appeal's per curiam Opinion cites as controlling authority Sanderson v. Freedom Savings and Loan Association, which decision is pending review on the merits in the Supreme Court and this constitutes prima facie express conflict allowing this Court to exercise its jurisdiction.

Jollie, infra. In addition this Court is currently reviewing on the merits another Third District Court of Appeal case involving the Fireman's Rule Kilpatrick v. Sklar, infra, Case Nos. 69,890 and 69,892.

It is respectfully submitted that in light of the prima facie express conflict with the Decision below and the decision in <u>Sanderson</u>, that this Court should exercise its discretion to review the Third District's Opinion and this case should be accepted as a companion case to both Sanderson and Kilpatrick.

#### ARGUMENT

THE DECISION BELOW CONSTITUTES PRIMA FACIE EXPRESS CONFLICT WITH Sanderson v. Freedom Savings and Loan Association, 496 So.2d 954 (Fla. 1st DCA 1986) (WHICH IS PENDING REVIEW ON THE MERITS IN THIS COURT); WHICH WAS CITED AS CONTROLLING AUTHORITY IN THE DECISION BELOW BARRING THE PLAINTIFF'S ACTION BY THE APPLICATION OF THE FIREMAN'S RULE.

There is prima facie express conflict with the Decision in the present case and Sanderson v. Freedom Savings and Loan

Association, 496 So.2d 954 (Fla 1st DCA 1986), because the opinion of the Third District cited Sanderson as controlling authority and Sanderson is currently pending review on the merits in this Court. (Case No. 69,607) (A 1). When a District Court of Appeal cites as controlling authority a decision that is pending review by the Supreme Court on the merits, this constitutes prima facie express conflict and allows the Supreme Court to exercise its jurisdiction. Jollie v. State, 405 So.2d

418 (Fla. 1981). See also, Mathis v. Foote Steel Corporation,

415 So.2d 893 (Fla. 1987); Harrison v. Hyster Company, 525 So.2d

1279 (Fla. 1987); R.J.B. v. State, 408 So.2d 1048 (Fla. 1982);

R.L.W. v. State, 409 So.2d 1072 (Fla. 1st DCA 1982).

In <u>Sanderson</u> the First District Court of Appeal held that the Fireman's Rule bars recovery in personal injury and wrongful death actions, when the cause of action is based upon an injury sustained by a fireman or a policeman when acting in the line of duty, unless the complaint sufficiently alleges willful misconduct or wanton negligence on the part of the defendant, which would injure the licensee policeman or fireman. <u>Sanderson</u>, 956. The Plaintiff in <u>Sanderson</u> argued that the Fireman's Rule

only applied in situations where the fireman or policeman was injured due to a defective condition of the premise and that when a plaintiff alleged "any" active negligence, even simple negligence, on the part of the owner of the premises or its agent, the applicability of the Fireman's Rule dissipates.

Sanderson, 956. The First District disagreed upholding the Fireman's Rule and it certified the case to this Court as being in conflict with Whitlock v. Elich, 409 So.2d 110 (Fla. 5th DCA 1982). Sanderson, 957.

The Plaintiff Fireman Brantley, argued the same position below as that asserted in <u>Sanderson</u>; that his Complaint for negligence on the part of the landowner in failing to warn of a dangerous condition, which was not open and obvious, did not require the application of the Fireman's Rule. As in the <u>Sanderson</u> case, both the trial court and appellate court disagreed finding the cause of action barred by the Fireman's Rule. As there is prima facie conflict between <u>Brantley</u> and <u>Sanderson</u> jurisdiction exists in this Court to review <u>Brantley</u> on the merits along with the decision in <u>Sanderson</u>.

In addition still another Fireman's Rule case is currently pending review on the merits in the Supreme Court in <a href="Kilpatrick">Kilpatrick</a>
<a href="V. Sklar">V. Sklar</a>, 497 So.2d 1289 (Fla. 3d DCA 1986), Supreme Court Case</a>
<a href="Nos.69,890">Nos.69,890</a> and 69,892. It is respectfully submitted that since all three cases present variations on the application of the Fireman's Rule, accepting jurisdiction in the <a href="Brantley">Brantley</a> case would allow this Court to make a comprehensive review of the application of the Fireman's Rule in Florida.

#### CONCLUSION

The Decision below constitutes prima facie express conflict with <u>Sanderson v. Freedom Savings and Loan Association</u>, 496 So.2d 954 (Fla. 1st DCA 1986) which is pending review on the merits in this Court, which case was cited as controlling authority in the Decision, below barring the Plaintiff's action by the application of the Fireman's Rule and this Court has jurisdiction to review the Brantley Decision.

Law Offices of RICHARD A. SHERMAN, P.A. Suite 102 N Justice Building 524 South Andrews Avenue Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301 (305) 525-5885 - Broward (305) 940-7557 - Dade