IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA CASE NO. 72,454

FLORIDA BAR NO. 255564

DANIEL H. BRANTLEY,

Petitioner,

vs.

GIRL SCOUT COUNCIL OF TROPICAL FLORIDA, INC., a Florida corporation,

Respondent.

SID J. WHITE

JUN 8 1988



ON APPEAL FROM THE THIRD DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL

RESPONDENT'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION GIRL SCOUT COUNCIL OF TROPICAL FLORIDA, INC.

PHILIP GLATZER, ESQ.
HIGHSMITH, STRAUSS & GLATZER, P.A.
3370 Mary Street
Coconut Grove, Florida 33133
(305)443-4040

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS AND THE CASE

The Petitioners' "Statement of the Facts and the Case" is improper because it recites "facts" which do not appear on the face of the District Court's per curiam affirmance without opinion. Therefore, this Court should summarily reject the Petitioner's Statement.

The District Court does cite various cases in support of its affirmance of the lower court in addition to <u>Sanderson v.</u>

<u>Freedom Savings and Loan Association</u>, **496** So. 2d 954 (Fla. 1st DCA 1986) and the holdings of those cases, none of which is in conflict with any other appellate decision, should be considered as a basis for this Court to decline to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction to review this case, as more fully set forth in the argument section of this brief.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The Petitioner is correct in arguing that this Court has discretionary jurisdiction to review this case because the Third District cited <u>Sanderson v. Freedom Savings and Loan Association</u>, supra, in its per curiam affirmance and because <u>Sanderson</u> is presently under consideration by this Court, having been argued on November 6, 1987. However, this Court should decline to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction in this case because the holdings of the cases cited by the Third District, other than <u>Sanderson</u>, demonstrate that one of the reasons why the Third District affirmed the lower court was because the Petitioner made arguments on appeal which were waived in the proceedings below. Accordingly, the Court should deny certiorari.

ARGUMENT

THIS COURT SHOULD DECLINE EXERCISE ITS DISCRETIONARY JURISDICTION IN THIS CASE BECAUSE THE OPINION OF THE THIRD DISTRICT PRESENTED REVIEW FOR NUMEROUS DECISIONS, OTHER Sanderson v. Freedom Savings and Loan Association, WHICH DO NOT CONFLICT WITH ANY OTHER APPELLATE DECISION, WHICH DO NOT CONCERN THE FIREMAN'S RULE AND WHICH SHOW THE PROPRIETY OF THE TRIAL COURT'S SUMMARY JUDGMENT.

In its per curiam affirmance, the District Court cited certain cases which explain that the basis, in part, of the District Court's affirmance of the trial court was that the Petitioner waived certain arguments made on appeal by failing to present them to the trial court. For example, the District Court cited this court's holding in Hart Properties, Inc. v. Slack, 159 So. 2d 236, 239 (Fla. 1964) where the court said:

"We hold again that issues in a cause are made solely by the pleadings and that the function of a motion for summary judgment is merely to determine if the respective parties can produce sufficient evidence in support of the operative issues made in the pleadings to require a trial to determine who shall prevail."

The District Court also cited <u>Steiner v. Ciba-Geigy</u> <u>Corporation</u>, 364 So. 2d 47, 53 (Fla. 3d DCA, 1978) where the court held as follows:

a

"Turning to plaintiff's last point on appeal urging that the summary final judgment was premature, we hold that the record does not support this theory. The Florida Rules of Civil Procedure provide a remedy for a party opposing a motion who finds that additional affidavits or depositions are necessary. Plaintiff, having failed to follow the rule even to move for a continuance of the hearing on the motion, may not claim error in the appellate court because the trial judge proceeded as provided by the rules. Cf. Page v. Staley, 226 So. 2d 129, 131 (Fla. 4th DCA 1969)."

Finally, the District Court cited <u>Davis v. Major Oil Company</u>, 164 So. 2d 558, 559 (Fla. 3d DCA, 1964) where it stated:

"The first and third contentions were not raised by the pleadings, pursuant to which the final summary judgment was entered, and we cannot entertain these points for the first time on this appeal."

None of the above decisions cited by the District Court as grounds for its affirmance of the trial court concerns the fireman's rule, as does <u>Sanderson</u>, supra, the decision urged as a basis for this court's review of the Third District's opinion. Furthermore, the citation of these cases by the Third District shows that the District Court affirmed the trial court because of fatal deficiencies in the Petitioner's case and for this reason, this court should deny certiorari.

CONCLUSION

a

This Court should decline to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction in this case because the Third District's opinion indicates that the Third District affirmed the trial court based upon appellate decisions which do not conflict with any other appellate decision and which do not concern the fireman's rule, as does <u>Sanderson</u>, supra, the decision upon which the Petitioner relies as a basis for this court's review of the District Court's opinion.